
DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7D6C-3C32-4357-B890-4130958AC9F5 

SOUTH CAROLINA COMMISSION ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS 

MINUTES 

November 17, 2022 

The South Carolina Commission on Disabilities and Special Needs met on 
Thursday, November 17, 2022, at 10:00 a.m., at the Department of Disabilities 
and Special Needs Central Office, 3440 Harden Street Extension, Columbia, 
South Carolina. 

The following were in attendance: 

COMMISSION 
Present In-Person 
Stephanie Rawlinson - Chairman 
Barry Malphrus - Vice Chairman 
Robin Blackwood - Secretary 
Gary Kocher, MD 
Eddie Miller 
David Thomas 
Michelle Woodhead 

DDSN Administrative Staff 

Michelle Fry, State Director; Constance Holloway, General Counsel; Harley 
Davis, Ph.D., Chief Administrative Officer; Lori Manos, Associate State Director 
of Policy; Quincy Swygert, Chief Financial Officer; Janet Priest, Associate State 
Director of Operations; Greg Meetze, Chief Information Officer; Ann Dalton, 
Quality Management Director; PJ Perea, Public Information Director; Preston 
Southern, Information Technology Division; and Christie Linguard, 
Administrative Coordinator. 

Notice of Meeting Statement 

Chairman Rawlinson called the meeting to order and Secretary Blackwood read 
a statement of announcement about the meeting that was distributed to the 
appropriate media, interested persons, and posted at the Central Office and on 
the website in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act. 

Welcome 

Chairman Rawlinson welcomed everyone to the meeting this morning. 

Adoption of the Agenda 

Commissioner Blackwood made a motion to approve the agenda as presented; 
seconded by Commissioner Kocher and unanimously approved by the 
Commission. (Attachment A) 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7D6C-3C32-4357-B890-4130958AC9F5 

November 17, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 8 

Invocation 

Commissioner Thomas gave the invocation. 

Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes 

After a correction of the time on the Special Called meeting minutes, 
Commissioner Blackwood made a motion to approve minutes from the 
Emergency Commission Meeting (November 9, 2022); Special Called Commission 
Meeting/Listening Session (October 20, 2022); and the regularly scheduled 
Commission Meeting held on October 20, 2022, seconded by Commissioner 
Woodhead and unanimously approved by the Commission. (Attachment B) 

Commissioners' Update 

Commissioner Woodhead noted that she has been busy with adaptive sporting 
events. 

Commissioner Malphrus stated that he and Commissioner Miller attended a 
meeting of the Beaufort County Council to present them with the Golden 
Palmetto Award. 

Commissioner Blackwood attended the board meeting at Charles Lea Center; she 
thanked them for welcoming her. 

Chairman Rawlinson acknowledged that she is in a wheelchair today and 
challenged all Commission members to spend a day in a wheelchair to gain some 
understanding for the anyone who has a disability and who moves by the aid of 
a wheelchair. 

Public Input 

Mr. Gerald Bernard of the Charles Lea Center announced that the Human 
Service Providers Association (HSPA) has announced its first Technology 
Summit, which will take place on January 25, 2022. There will be more 
information to come in the future. He invited Dr. Fry to attend and provide 
opening remarks. The March HSPA Conference will have several technology 
presenters. Mr. Bernard was asked to send information to PJ Perea to help 
spread the word about the Summit in January. (Attachment C) 

Programs and Services 

Level of Care Need Assessment Instrument for DDSN - Drs. Gerald Koocher 
(Consulting Technical Advisor) and Stanley Rabinowitz (Senior Technical Advisor) 
of EdMetric, LLC presented the Acuity Tool for the agency. Dr. Fry thanked Mr. 
Thoyd Warren of the Babcock Center as well as Mr. Gene Baughman of the DDSN 
Midlands Center for hosting their site visits. (Attachment D) 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7D6C-3C32-4357-B890-4130958AC9F5 

November 17, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 8 

Strategic Planning for DDSN-Dr. Harley Davis introduced Erika C. Robbins, M.A., 
PMP (Owner /Partner) and Dr. Sheli Reynolds (Senior Associate Director, UMKC 
Institute of Human Development, University Center in Excellence on 
Developmental Disabilities) of Sage Squirrel Consulting, LLC. 

Commission Committee Business 

A. Finance and Audit Committee

The Finance and Audit Committee met on November 9, 2022. The
following items were presented for approval:

Financial Approval and Threshold Report - Cooperative Grants

Commissioner Blackwood noted that the staff has requested an increase
in the threshold of Cooperative Training Grants from $400,000 to $1.0
million in the FY23 Spending Plan. The grants are still in the planning
phase but the agency has recognized that $400,000 will not be sufficient
to sustain the new initiative in addition to the multi-year approach that
the agency is seeking. DDSN is optimistic that these grant opportunities
will encourage and support innovative and financially viable approaches
to Provider's needs in these areas. Coming out of the Committee as a
motion and a second, the Commission unanimously approved the grant
increase to $1.0 million. (Attachment E)

275-05-DD: General Duties of DDSN Internal Audit

This Directive was posted for external review. One comment was received 
and that comment was addressed by adding some clarifying language. 
Coming out of the Committee as a motion and a second, the Commission 
unanimously approved this Directive as presented. (Attachment F) 

There is not a planned Finance and Audit Committee meeting in 
December. 

B. Policy Committee

Commissioner Malphrus presented the following item to the Commission:

Administrative Agency Standard - This Standard was posted for external
review and comments were received. Comments were addressed and
additional clarifying language was made to the Standard. Coming out of
the Committee as a motion and a second, the Commission unanimously
approved this Standard as presented. (Attachment G)



DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7O6C-3C32-4357-B890-4130958AC9F5 

November 17, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 8 

Committee Update: Ms. Manos noted that there were five other policies 
presented at the Committee meeting. Three of these policies centered 
around telephone usage. Directive 367-08-DD was approved by the 
Committee to make it obsolete; Directive 367-11-DD was updated to add 
some language from the 367-08-DD Directive; and Directive 367-20-DD 
which governs mobile devices was presented and sent out for external 
review. These Directives should be brought to the Commission at the 
January 2023 meeting. Both Directives 104-01-DD (Certification and 
Licensure) and 100-28-DD (Quality Management) were approved by the 
Committee and sent out for public comment. Again, these two directives 
will be brought to the Commission for approval at the January 2023 
meeting. 

The Policy Committee does not plan to meet in the month of December. 

Old Business 

A. Quarterly Incident Report

Chairman Rawlinson thanked Ms. Dalton for all of her hard work with the 
Emergency Commission Meeting that took place last week. Ms. Dalton 
briefly spoke on the five-year incident trend data for Community-Based 
Services (including Residential and Day Service Settings) and Regional 
Centers through September 30, 2022. (Attachment H) 

B. Human Resources Update

Ms. Lemmond presented hiring date for Direct Support Professionals 
(DSP); job postings for the central office; recruitment and retention 
initiatives; Weekend Warrior Program; onboarding redesign; employee 
performance management system (EPMS); exit interview process and the 
United Way campaign amongst other human resources related topics. Dr. 
Fry informed the Commission that the agency is in the process of hiring a 
Visual Media Design II person to work on short recruiting videos for social 
media, amongst other visual job duties and responsibilities. Interviews for 
the Public Information Director II will take place in December. Ms. 
Lemmond noted the division created referral cards for current staff to refer 
individuals to the agency for specific posted job positions. Human 
Resources is working with the Information Technology division to develop 
an electronic document for the agency's position descriptions, planning 
documents and evaluations, which will assist with easy flow and a 
paperless system. Lastly, the third annual Halloween Door Decorating 
Contest and the United Way Pet Contest winners were announced. 
(Attachment I) 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7D6C-3C32-4357-B890-4130958AC9F5 

November 17, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 8 

C. Outreach Update

On November 12, DDSN partnered with the South Carolina State Museum 
to grow the audience attending the Museum Accessibility Morning. With 
help from the DDSN Communication Department, the event has grown 
from 50 to more than 150 participants through targeted marketing, social 
media postings and Newsbreak blog postings. DDSN's Stephanie Turner 
and PJ Perea have provided DDSN resources and information to many 
consumers and their families and the program partnership will continue 
into 2023. 

On November 22 from 12-4pm at the Icehouse Amphitheater, DDSN will 
partner with Serve and Connect, First Community Bank, Town of 
Lexington, Lexington Sheriffs Department, Cayce Police Department, West 
Columbia Police Department, Uplift Lexington County, and Si Se Puede to 
host Bountiful Harvest. This multi-agency event aims at bringing 
neighbors together while packing free, non-perishable boxes of food called 
Greg's Groceries. Items will be Thanksgiving themed so every family can 
celebrate the holidays. There will be a free meal for all, as well as music 
and a resource fair for people of all ages to enjoy. DDSN will host a vendor 
booth to meet and greet families attending the event. 

On Dec 1, 2022, DDSN will sponsor the South Carolina First Steps 
Summit on Early Childhood. The conference will provide early childhood 
professionals and advocates, parents, members of the business 
community, and elected officials an open platform to share strategies, 
research, and dialogue in order to foster a strong foundation for the 
children of South Carolina. 

On December 7, 8 and 9, DDSN will attend as a sponsor/vendor at the 
Columbia's Edventure Museum Sensory Nights. The free event offers 
families a calming and quiet experience after hours to explore the exhibits 
and programs at the museum. The December event will feature a Sensory 
Santa for families. DDSN will be available to provide information for 
families and free sensory toys for children. 

On December 8, 2022, DDSN will hold its third annual Holiday Market at 
the central office. We encourage the public to come and shop with our 
consumers. 

Congratulations to Beaufort County on winning the 2021 Golden Palmetto 
Award honoring counties that excel in serving the disabled community. 
Commissioners Barry Malphrus and Eddie Miller presented the award at 
the Beaufort County Council meeting earlier this week. The 2022 
nominations for the Silver Palmetto Award to honor city governments that 
support individuals with disabilities and special needs will officially open 
today and close next month on December 30, 2022. An official memo will 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7D6C-3C32-4357-B890-4130958AC9F5 

November 17, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 6 of 8 

be announced through the provider network and distributed electronically 
after today's Commissioner meeting. 

New Business 

Financial Update 

On October 20, the agency's budget staff began validating the paid claims data 
from the monthly Medicaid reports. The findings thus far appear to be accurate. 
The validation process is still ongoing. Mr. Swygert will provide an update at the 
January Commission meeting. Mr. Swygert presented the FY23 Spending Plan 
vs Actual Expenditures as of October 31, 2022. The agency is on target with the 
projections. Commissioner Thomas made a motion to approve the financial 
update; seconded by Commissioner Blackwood and unanimously approved by 
the Commission. 

Mr. Swygert updated the Commission on the budget submission. Approximately 
three weeks ago, he and key staff members met with the Executive Budget Office 
(EBO) as well as the Governor's Office staff. The EBO budget will be released 
right before session starts, usually the first week in January. The House Ways 
and Means Budget presentation will take place in January as well. And Senate 
Finance Budget Proposal will be presented in March. 

All but one Cost Report has been received from the Boards. The agency is on 
target to submit last year's Cost Report before the mid-December deadline. 
(Attachment J) 

Director's Update 

Dr. Fry announced that the agency's contract extension with Alliant has been 
approved by the Materials Management Office (MMO). Agency staff is actively 
working on an QIO RFP to put in place once the contract with Alliant expires. 

The Crisis Intervention Stabilization initiative is coming along as building 
improvements are currently taking place. We are recruiting on various positions 
and will hopefully begin to hold interviews in December. We will provide updates 
as needed. 

Dr. Fry gave an update on the Conflict-Free Case Management Initiative as well 
as a timeline for completion. Essentially, we wanted to have at least 20% of 
participants deconflicted by the end of the year; however, we have 50% 
deconflicted at this time. It is our hope to have everyone deconflicted by 
December 30, 2023. Communication was sent to providers earlier this month 
requesting a report on their transition progress by early January. A formal report 
on statewide progress must be submitted to SC Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS) in February, 2023. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7O6C-3C32-4357-B890-4130958AC9F5 

November 17, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 7 of 8 

The Agency has contracted with IntellectAbility to provide a Learning 
Management System (LMS) that will be accessible via the agency's website. 
Providers will be updated on trainings as they become available. 

We are continuing to make progress on the Commission approved Regional 
Center improvement projects, some of which include but not limited to, 
Highlands drain line repairs; roof replacement on three roofs at the Midlands 
Center; Walnut improvements to incorporate the Crisis Center Stabilization; pool 
renovations at Pee Dee Regional Center; bathroom renovations at Pecan dorms; 
roof replacements for both Pecan and mulberry are in the works; and flooring 
replacements at Whitten Regional Center. 

The Monthly Provider Meeting will take place on Monday, November 28th at 2:00 
PM. A request was made to providers to send any topics they would like to 
discuss. 

Chairman Rawlinson announced the following new staff members: 

• September 3rd

o Jana Brown, Network Technician II - Tier 1, IT Systems, Central
Office

o Valerie Duncan, Director of Procurement, Procurement & Supply,
Central Office

• November 2nd

o Michael Bailey, Systems Programmer/Developer I, ITD, Central
Office

o Erica Crawford, Constituent Services Coordinator, Quality Mgmt.,
Central Office

o Trina Sawyer, Direct Support Professional I, Autism Division,
Piedmont Autism CTH

o Trarisa Merritt, Direct Support Professional I, Autism Division,
Piedmont Autism CTH

• November 14th

o Sharon Roberts, Benefits Manager, Human Resources, Central
Office

The Commission is planning on not having a Commission or Committee meeting 
in the month of December. We are planning to have a Listening Session with 
our providers the afternoon of January 19th after the regularly scheduled 
meeting. This Listening Session will be to discuss whether or not the agency 
should remain as is with a Commission or become a cabinet agency. The 
Strategic Planning work-session meeting will take place on January 20th.

Discussion was held on whether or not the Commission should wait to have the 
Listening Session for the Providers after a bill has been introduced next year. 
Commissioner Thomas stated that a bill has been pre-filed. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 652F7D6C-3C32-4357-8890-4130958AC9F5 

November 17, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 8 of 8 

Commissioner Kocher asked for an update on the family that presented to the 
Commission a few months ago. Ms. Manos updated the Commission by stated 
that the agency is still working with the family on a few options. 

Next Regular Meeting 

January 19, 2023 at 10:00 AM 

Adjournment 

On a motion by Commissioner Thomas, seconded by Commissioner Malphrus 
and unanimously approved by the commission, the meeting was adjourned at 
12:43 P.M. 

Submitted by: 

Christie D. Linguard 
Administrative Coordinator 

Approved by: 

Commissioner Robin Blackwood 
Secretary 



SOUTH CAROLINA COMMISSION ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS 

A G E N D A 
South Carolina Department of Disabilities and Special Needs 

3440 Harden Street Extension 
Conference Room 251 (TEAMS) 
 Columbia, South Carolina 

November 17, 2022 10:00 A.M. 

1. Call to Order Chairman Stephanie Rawlinson 

2. Notice of Meeting Statement Commissioner Robin Blackwood 

3. Welcome

4. Adoption of Agenda

5. Invocation Commissioner David Thomas 

6. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes
1.  Emergency Commission Meeting – November 9, 2022
2. Special Called Commission Meeting/Listening Session – October 20, 2022
3. Commission Meeting – October 20, 2022

7. Commissioners’ Update Commissioners 

8. Public Input

9. Programs and Services

A. Level of Care Need Assessment Instrument for DDSN EdMetric, LLC 
Gerald Koocher, PhD – Consulting Technical Advisor
Stanley Rabinowitz, PhD - Senior Technical Advisor

B. Strategic Planning for DDSN Sage Squirrel Consulting, LLC 
Sheli Reynolds, PhD – Senior Associate Director, UMKC Institute of Human 

Development, University Center in Excellence on Developmental Disabilities 
Erika C. Robbins, M.A., PMP – Owner/Partner 

10. Commission Committee Business

A. Finance & Audit Committee Committee Chair Robin Blackwood 

1. Financial Approval & Threshold Report – Cooperative Grants
2. 275-05-DD:  General Duties of DDSN Internal Audit

B. Policy Committee Committee Chair Barry Malphrus 

1. Administrative Agency Standard
2. Committee Update

Attachment A



2 

11. Old Business:

A. Quarterly Incident Report Ms. Ann Dalton 
B. Human Resources Update Ms. Liz Lemmond 
C. Outreach Update Harley Davis, Ph.D. 

12. New Business:

Financial Update Mr. Quincy Swygert 

13. Director’s Update Michelle G. Fry, J.D., Ph.D. 

14. Next Regular Meeting – January 19, 2023

15. Adjournment



SOUTH CAROLINA COMMISSION ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS 

EMERGENCY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

November 9, 2022 

The South Carolina Commission on Disabilities and Special Needs met on 
Wednesday, November 9, 2022, at 4:15 p.m. at the Department of Disabilities 
and Special Needs Central Office, 3440 Harden Street Extension, Columbia, 
South Carolina. 

The following were in attendance: 

COMMISSION 
Present In-Person 
Barry Malphrus – Vice Chairman 
Robin Blackwood – Secretary 
Gary Kocher, MD 
Eddie Miller 
Michelle Woodhead 

Microsoft Teams 
Stephanie Rawlinson – Chairman 
David Thomas 

DDSN Administrative Staff 

Michelle Fry, State Director; Constance Holloway, General Counsel; Lori Manos, 
Interim Associate State Director of Policy; Janet Priest, Associate State Director 
of Operations; Courtney Crosby, Director of Internal Audit; Quincy Swygert, 
Chief Financial Officer; Harley Davis, Chief Administrative Officer; Ann Dalton, 
Director of Quality Management; Carolyn Benzon, Attorney; Preston Southern, 
Information Technology Division; and Christie Linguard, Administrative 
Coordinator.  

Others Present 

Attorney Micah Caskey, Counsel for Lutheran Services Carolinas; and Bethany 
Vause, Lutheran Services Carolinas. 

Call to Order and Notice of Meeting Statement  

Chairman Rawlinson called the meeting to order and Secretary Blackwood read 
a statement of announcement about the meeting that was distributed to the 
appropriate media, interested persons, and posted at the Central Office and on 
the website in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act. 

Attachment B



November 9, 2022 – Emergency Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

Adoption of the Agenda 

On a motion by Commissioner Malphrus, seconded by Commissioner Kocher 
and unanimously approved by the Commission members, the agenda was 
unanimously approved as presented.  (Attachment A) 

Chairman Rawlinson read a statement and a disclaimer stating the following:  
According to South Carolina laws and the Commission Bylaws along with the 
Policies of the agency, the Commission is not required to allow public input; 
however, for the purposes of information and transparency, this Commission 
chooses to offer this opportunity for important matters.  The rules set forth are 
as follows:  You must refrain from using personal attacks on any Commission 
member, individual, DDSN employee or any other persons connected to DDSN. 
If your presentation involves discussing individuals who are served by DDSN, 
please refrain from using identifying information such as names, birthdays, and 
Social Security numbers, etc.  Each presenter will be allowed a sufficient amount 
of time for their presentation; however, if the presentation becomes redundant 
or excessive, then the presenter will be required to conclude their presentation 
within a few seconds.  Commissioners were asked to please hold their questions 
until both presentations have concluded.  Lastly, the Commission does reserve 
the right to terminate any presentation which does not adhere to the guidelines 
set forth. 

Presentation regarding Lutheran Services Carolinas (LSC) 

Attorney Micah Caskey addressed the Commission briefly by stating that he is 
unclear as to the nature of this meeting.  He noted there has been a lack of 
communication with the agency.  He asked for an opportunity to respond prior 
to any definitive decisions being made. 

Ms. Dalton then addressed the Commission by stating the problems and 
concerns the agency has had with Lutheran Services Carolinas, especially in the 
past few months.  (Attachment B) 

Ms. Priest made the staff recommendation that the licenses issued to Lutheran 
Services Carolinas be revoked, which includes twenty-seven (27) CTHI licenses 
and eight (8) CTHII licenses.   

Attorney Caskey asked if he could have three (3) more minutes to readdress the 
Commission, which was granted by the Commission.  Attorney Caskey asked the 
Commission to look at the responses outlined before each Commissioner in 
detail.  He highlighted the timeline for the Corrective Action Plan (CAP) and the 
responses received from the agency.   



November 9, 2022 – Emergency Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

General Counsel, Ms. Holloway, addressed the Commission to briefly discuss the 
appeals rights outlined in the agency’s Directive (167-01-DD), if the Commission 
takes an action today.     

Dr. Fry clarified that this meeting is not an administrative hearing.  That is an 
entirely different process.  She also noted that after receiving the responses to 
the third CAP from LSC and the ability to reasonably design transition planning, 
staff brought their concerns to this Meeting out of concern for the health safety 
and well-being of those served.    

Executive Session 

At 5:05 PM, Commissioner Blackwood made a motion to enter into executive 
session to receive legal advice regarding a contractual matter: Lutheran Services 
Carolinas.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Woodhead and 
unanimously approved by the Commission. 

Rise from Executive Session 

At 5:52 PM, the Commission rose out of executive session.  Chairman Rawlinson 
stated that no motions or actions taken during the executive session.   

Commissioner David Thomas did not rejoin the meeting after the executive 
session.     

Action Items Necessary from Executive Session 

Commissioner Miller made a motion to accept staff’s recommendation to revoke 
all licenses issued to Lutheran Services Carolinas, which includes eight (8) 
licenses for CTHIIs and twenty-seven (27) licenses for CTHIs.  This motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Kocher and unanimously approved by the 
Commission. 

A second motion was made by Commissioner Miller to terminate Lutheran 
Services Carolinas contract with the SC Department of Disabilities and Special 
Needs for the contract period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 based on 
Article 5, Sections B and C of the contract.  This motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Woodhead and unanimously approved by the Commission. 

Adjournment 

On a motion by Commissioner Woodhead, seconded by Commissioner Miller and 
unanimously approved by the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 5:55 
PM.  



November 9, 2022 – Emergency Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

Submitted by: Approved by: 

_______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Christie D. Linguard Commissioner Robin Blackwood 
Administrative Coordinator Secretary 



SOUTH CAROLINA COMMISSION ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS 

SPECIAL CALLED COMMISSION MEETING/LISTENING SESSION MINUTES 

October 20, 2022 

The South Carolina Commission on Disabilities and Special Needs met on 
Thursday, October 20, 2022, at 1:00 p.m., at the Dorchester County Council 
Chamber, 500 North Main Street, Summerville, South Carolina. 

The following were in attendance: 

COMMISSION 
Present In-Person 
Stephanie Rawlinson – Chairman 
Barry Malphrus – Vice Chairman 
Robin Blackwood – Secretary 
Gary Kocher, MD 
Eddie Miller 
Michelle Woodhead 

Not Present 
David Thomas 

DDSN Administrative Staff 

Michelle Fry, State Director; Constance Holloway, General Counsel; Lori Manos, 
Interim Associate State Director of Policy; Janet Priest, Associate State Director 
of Operations; Courtney Crosby, Director of Internal Audit; Mark Kaminer, 
Information Technology Manager; Preston Southern, Information Technology 
Division; Kimberly Cochran, Administrative Coordinator; and Christie Linguard, 
Administrative Coordinator.  

Call to Order and Notice of Meeting Statement 

Chairman Rawlinson called the meeting to order and Secretary Blackwood read 
a statement of announcement about the meeting that was distributed to the 
appropriate media, interested persons, and posted at the Central Office and on 
the website in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act. 

Welcome 

Chairman Rawlinson welcomed everyone and read the Guidelines of the 
Listening Session.   

Attachment B



October 20, 2022 DDSN Special Called Commission Meeting/Listening Session 
Minutes 
Page 2 of 2 

Adoption of the Agenda 

On a motion by Commissioner Blackwood, seconded by Commissioner Kocher 
and unanimously approved by the Commission members, the agenda was 
approved as presented.  (Attachment A) 

Public Input 

There was no public input. 

Adjournment 

On a motion by Commissioner Blackwood, seconded by Commissioner Malphrus 
and unanimously approved by the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 
9:44 a.m.  

Submitted by: Approved by: 

_______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Christie D. Linguard Commissioner Robin Blackwood 
Administrative Coordinator Secretary 



 SOUTH CAROLINA COMMISSION ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS 

MINUTES 

October 20, 2022 

The South Carolina Commission on Disabilities and Special Needs met on 
Thursday, October 20, 2022, at 10:00 a.m., at the Dorchester County Council 
Chamber, 500 North Main Street, Summerville, South Carolina. 

The following were in attendance: 

COMMISSION 
Present In-Person 
Stephanie Rawlinson – Chairman 
Barry Malphrus – Vice Chairman 
Robin Blackwood – Secretary 
Gary Kocher, MD 
Eddie Miller 
David Thomas 
Michelle Woodhead 

DDSN Administrative Staff 

Michelle Fry, State Director; Constance Holloway, General Counsel; Lori Manos, 
Interim Associate State Director of Policy; Janet Priest, Associate State Director 
of Operations; Courtney Crosby, Director of Internal Audit; Susan Davis, 
Director of Employment Services; Becky Peters, Director of Day Programs; Mark 
Kaminer, Information Technology Manager; Preston Southern, Information 
Technology Division; Kimberly Cochran, Administrative Coordinator; and 
Christie Linguard, Administrative Coordinator.  

Notice of Meeting Statement  

Chairman Rawlinson called the meeting to order and Secretary Blackwood read 
a statement of announcement about the meeting that was distributed to the 
appropriate media, interested persons, and posted at the Central Office and on 
the website in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act. 

Welcome 

Chairman Rawlinson began by thanking the Dorchester County Council for 
allowing the Commission to use their Chamber today.  A special thank you was 
extended to Tracey Langley, Clerk to County Council.  She also thanked Kimberly 
Cochran for organizing the meeting space and lunches; and Christie Linguard 
for her continued support to the Commission.    

Attachment B



October 20, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 

Adoption of the Agenda 

Commissioner Thomas requested to add “Legislative Update” to the agenda. 
Commissioner Malphrus made a motion to approve the agenda as amended; this 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Kocher and unanimously approved by 
the Commission.  (Attachment A) 

Invocation 

Commissioner Malphrus gave the invocation. 

Approval of the September 15, 2022 Commission Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Blackwood made a motion to approve minutes from the 
Commission Meeting held on September 15, 2022; seconded by Commissioner 
Malphrus and unanimously approved by the Commission.  (Attachment B)   

Commissioners’ Update 

Commissioner Thomas attended the Pickens County 50th Anniversary 
Celebration.  He had a wonderful time.  He thanked everyone and was happy to 
attend. 

Commissioner Kocher had a private meeting with a consumer whose son has 
Autism.   

Due to technical difficulties, the Commission recessed for five (5) minutes. 
difficulties. 

Commissioner Blackwood participated in the CanTalk event last week in 
Greenville, SC.  The SC Thrive drummers performed.   

Commissioner Woodhead informed everyone that she did a presentation on 
disability and inclusion to her employer’s executive team.  She excitedly reported 
that the feedback was great.  Her employer will begin focusing on inclusion and 
highlight disabilities at least one (1) month next year.   

Commissioner Malphrus thanked Mr. Jim Kilgallen and the wonderful things he 
does with the Day Program here in Charleston.  He also thanked the Dorchester 
County Council for allowing the Commission to hold this meeting in their 
Chambers.   

Chairman Rawlinson reminded everyone that there will be a Special Called 
Meeting at 1:00 PM to hold a listening session for the community.  The 
community will have five (5) minutes to tell the Commission of what is going on 



October 20, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 6 

in their community or inform the Commissioners of any issues or concerns 
regarding disabilities.   

National Disabilities Employment Awareness Month 

Ms. Susan Davis briefed the Commission on the agency’s initiatives to promote 
National Disabilities Employment Awareness this month.  She referenced the 
newsletter given to each Commissioner and showed two consumer employee 
focused videos.  (Attachment C)      

Commission Committee Business 

A. Finance and Audit Committee

The Finance and Audit Committee met on October 12, 2022.

Commissioner Blackwood submitted the following item for approval:

Financial Approval and Threshold Report – The contract for long-range
strategic planning consulting was awarded to Sage Squirrel Consulting,
LLC in the amount of $283,180 for a one (1) year period with four (4)
renewals.  Coming out of the Committee as a motion and second, the
Commission unanimously approved the contract with Sage Squirrel
Consulting, LLC. (Attachment D)

CPIP Project Status/Move Up on List – three (3) items were presented for
approval to begin the process for an RFP:  Pee Dee Center Mulberry and
Pecan Roof Replacement; Pee Dee-Pecan Dorms Bathroom Renovations;
and Midlands Walnut Bathroom Renovations.  Coming out of the
Committee as a motion and second, the Commission unanimously
approved the three (3) aforementioned plan to seek solicitation for the
three above mentioned projects.  (Attachment E)

Sale of Landrum I and II – the agency will work with the Department of
Administration and the State Fiscal Accountability Authority to complete
the approval to put these two facilities (Landrum I and II) on state surplus.
Coming out of the Committee as a motion and second, the Commission
unanimously approved to move forward with the sale of these two (2)
properties.  (Attachment F)

B. Policy Committee

Commissioner Malphrus presented the following items to the Commission:

505-02-DD:  Death Reporting and Mortality – Commissioner Malphrus
noted that this policy will be effective on November 1, 2022.  Coming out



October 20, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 6 

of committee as a motion and a second, the Commission unanimously 
approved this policy as written.  Commissioner Thomas asked if the 
Committee could review the directive regarding do not resuscitate (DNR) 
soon.  (Attachment G)  

Ms. Manos added that the Committee reviewed the Administrative Agency 
Standard at the last meeting and have posted it to the website for the 10- 
day public comment period.  Directive 275-05-DD - General Duties of the 
Internal Audit Division was reviewed by the Committee.  It was passed to 
Finance and Audit Committee, which reviewed and sent out for public 
comment.    

C. Legislative Committee

Commissioner Thomas asked the Commission and staff to think about the
pros and cons of making DDSN a cabinet agency versus continuing with
the Commission.  Both Commissioner Thomas and Chairman Rawlinson
would like for the Commission to have an open work session in January
wherein we will solicit providers’ feedback as well.

Old Business 

A. Special Called Meeting on Screening & Eligibility Process

Ms. Manos stated that the agency is currently in the process of updating
the screening and eligibility process within the agency; therefore, she is
requesting that the Commission amend their motion from the August
meeting to allow for more time to streamline the processes.  Commissioner
Malphrus made a motion to extend the motion made in August 2022 from
60 days to February 2023; the motion was seconded by Commissioner
Thomas and unanimously approved by the Commission.  Discussion was
held to possibly have a meeting aside from the monthly Commission
meeting.

B. Internal Audit (IA) Update

Ms. Crosby noted that the 2021 Agreed Upon Procedures Report is almost
complete.  The division is working with the boards and contracted service
providers to resolve any outstanding questions. The IA division is now
receiving the 2022 Agreed Upon Procedures Reports.

The Audit Observation Tracking Report is updated and has been emailed
to all Commissioners.  This Report includes the results of follow-up
procedures that were completed in the last quarter.



October 20, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 6 

The Internal Audit Charter was revised.  It is now out for external review.  
Once the 10-day public comment period is over, this directive will go back 
to the Finance and Audit Committee for approval, and finally to the full 
Commission. 

New Business 

A. Financial Update

Mr. Swygert presented the FY23 Spending Plan vs Actual Expenditures
through September 30, 2022.  The agency is under budgeted by .26%.
Commissioner Blackwood made a motion to approve the document,
seconded by Commissioner Malphrus and unanimously approved by the
Commission.  (Attachment H)

Mr. Swygert introduced himself and talked a little bit about his work
experience and background in finance.

The FY24 Budget Request was submitted to the Executive Budget Office
on Friday, September 23, 2022.  The agency’s first hearing on the budget
will take place on Tuesday, October 25, 2022 at 2:00 PM.  The DDSN team
will have 15 minutes to present our $32 million budget.

As of yesterday, the agency has received 32 FY22 Cost Reports from the
40 Boards.  The Finance team is working on the Reports as they are
submitted in order to meet the Department of Health and Human Services
(DHHS) deadline.

 Director’s Update 

The agency has successfully completed their social media public relations 
campaign with the South Carolina State Fair (Fair) for their sensory friendly 
morning on October 13, 2022.  More than 3,000 fairgoers attended the inaugural 
event, which was covered by Fox, ABC, NBS and CBS television media 
affiliations. Staff at the agency was on hand to greet families and pass out 
sensory friendly toys and informational brochures.  Exceptional Citizens Day is 
today at the Fair. 

The agency is a sponsor for the Able, SC Employer’s Summit. DDSN is also now 
a partner with Accessibility Mornings at the South Carolina State Museum. 
Stephanie Turner, the agency’s new Autism Division Director, attended the event 
and is working to develop some updated resources for families in need of the 
agency’s services.   



October 20, 2022 DDSN Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 6 of 6 

DDSN will also assist in sponsoring the SC American Association on Intellectual 
and Developmental Disabilities’ Conference on October 26 – 28, 2022 in Myrtle 
Beach, SC.  Dr. Fry, amongst other DDSN staff, is a presenter at this Conference. 

The agency has procured Sage Squirrel, LLC to assist with our Strategic Planning 
needs.   

Down Syndrome Awareness Month is coming to an end and we are looking 
forward to supporting SC Family Connections of the Midlands in their Buddy 
Walk on November 6, 2022 in Irmo, South Carolina.  We will be hosting a booth 
and passing out informational material regarding the programs and services at 
DDSN. 

Next Regular Meeting 

November 17, 2022 @ 10:00 AM 

Adjournment 

On a motion by Commissioner Blackwood, seconded by Commissioner Kocher 
and unanimously approved by the commission, the meeting was adjourned at 
12:41 P.M.  

Chairman Rawlinson again noted that the Special Called Meeting/Listening 
Session will begin at 1:00 PM today.  Depending on the number of participants, 
the Session may end early.  Commissioner Blackwood added that anytime 
anyone has any questions for the Commission members, please contact them.  
Their contact information is on the agency’s website.  Chairman Rawlinson then 
reread the Guidelines for the Listening Session. 

Submitted by: Approved by: 

_______________________________ ___________________________________ 
Christie D. Linguard Commissioner Robin Blackwood 
Administrative Coordinator Secretary 



Attachment C



South Carolina 
Acuity Tool 

Attachment D



ABOUT OUR TEAM

KARLA EGAN, PH.D.
EDMETRIC FOUNDER & 

PRINCIPAL 

Stanley Rabinowitz PH.D.
SENIOR TECHNICAL ADVISOR

Gerald Koocher PH.D.
SENIOR TECHNICAL ADVISOR



AGENDA
1

2

Introductions

Tasks/Target Dates



Who are we?



Stanley Rabinowitz, Ph.D.
Project Director/Technical Oversight



Stanley Rabinowitz, Ph.D.      Project Director/Technical Oversight

● More than 30 years experience developing, implementing and 
validating large, complex state and national assessment and 
accountability programs, including several assessments of 
students with disabilities and other underrepresented student 
populations. He has led or supported evaluations and validations 
for numerous state and national programs.



Stanley Rabinowitz, Ph.D.       Project Director/Technical Oversight

Pearson:Senior Technical Advisor

● Support clients to maximize their transition to online assessments, ensuring efficient use of 
technology.

● Ensure that assessment solutions are valid and fair for all students, including Students with 
Disabilities, English Learners and other under-served populations.

● Support states to implement valid and equitable assessment and accountability systems in the 
COVID environment.

Australian Curriculum, Assessment and Reporting Authority: General Manager Assessment and 
Reporting

● Led the transition of the national student assessment program from paper to online.
● Managed all national student and school data reporting, including the My School web site.
● Spearheaded the shift to fairer student and school accountability, focusing on models that include 

both growth and status dimensions.



Stanley Rabinowitz, Ph.D.         Project Director/Technical Oversight       

WestEd: Senior Program Director, Assessment and Standards Development Services

● Led the development and implementation of state-of-the-art standards, assessment and 
accountability models in over half the US states and nationally.

● Managed a staff of over 100 content, psychometric, research and program management 
specialists.

● Served on or managed more than 20 state and national Technical Advisory Committees.
● Center for Standards and Assessment Implementation (CSAI))
● Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium Project Management Partner (PMP)

New Jersey Department of Education: Director of Statewide Assessment, Bureau of 
Cognitive Skills

● Led the development of state assessments away from minimum basic skills to higher-order 
skills.

● Led the integration of content and assessment staff within a complex state agency.



Gerald P. Koocher, Ph.D., ABPP
Senior Technical Advisor



Gerald P. Koocher, Ph.D., ABPP    Senior Technical Advisor

Education
• Ph.D. in Clinical and Developmental 

Psychology, University of Missouri, 
Columbia.

• M.A. in Psychology, University of Missouri, 
Columbia.

• B.A. in Psychology, Boston University

• Internship and Post-Doctoral Fellowship at 
Harvard Medical School/Boston Children’s 
Hospital

• Post-graduate course work at Kennedy 
School of Government and Graduate School 
of Education, Harvard University

Licenses and Certifications

• Active psychology licenses: Illinois, 
Massachusetts, and New Hampshire, 
inactive license in District of Columbia

• American Board of Professional Psychology 
current certifications:

• Clinical Psychology
• Clinical Child and Adolescent 

Psychology
• Clinical Health Psychology
• Couple and Family Psychology
• Forensic Psychology



Gerald P. Koocher, Ph.D., ABPP    Senior Technical Advisor

Current Professional Positions Past Professional Positions

• Dean and Professor, College of Science and 
Health, DePaul University, Chicago

• Dean, Associate Provost, and Professor, 
Health Sciences, Simmons University, Boston

• Chief Psychologist, Boston Children’s Hospital

• Executive Director, Linda Pollin Institute and 
Associate Professor, Harvard Medical School, 
Boston

• President, American Psychological Association

• Program Director, Capella University, 
Minneapolis

• Senior Attending Psychologist, Boston 
Children’s Hospital

• Faculty, Harvard Medical School Bioethics 
Center

• Psychology Investigator, Office of 
Professional Licensing and Certification, State 
of New Hampshire



Gerald P. Koocher, Ph.D., ABPP    Senior Technical Advisor

Key Publications

• 350 peer reviewed articles and book chapters

• 17 Books including:
• Koocher, G. P.  & O'Malley, J. E.  (1981). The Damocles Syndrome: Psychosocial Consequences of Surviving 

Childhood Cancer.  New York: McGraw Hill.
• Sparta, S. N. & Koocher, G. P.  (Eds.) (2006). Forensic Mental Health Assessment of Children and Adolescents.  New 

York: Oxford University Press.
• Koocher, G. P., Norcross, J. C., & Greene, B. (Eds.). (2013).  PsyDR3: Psychologists' Desk Reference (third edition), 

New York: Oxford University Press.
• Koocher, G. P. & Keith-Spiegel, P. C.  (2016). Ethics in Psychology and the Mental Health Professions: Standards and 

Cases (fourth edition).  New York: Oxford University Press.
• Norcross, J. C., Hogan, T., Koocher, G. P. & Maggio, L. A. (2017).  Clinician’s guide to evidence-based practices: 

Mental health and the addictions, 2nd Edition.  New York: Oxford University Press.
• Koocher, G. P., La Greca, A. M., Lopez Reilly, N. N., & Moorehead-Slaughter, O.  (Eds.) (2023) The Parents’ Guide to 

Psychological First Aid: Helping Children and Adolescents Cope with Predictable Life Crises.  New York: Oxford 
University Press.



Karla Egan, Ph.D.
EdMetric, LLC (EdMetric), a woman-owned, small bus iness , 
was  founded in 2015 by Dr. Karla Egan, a  nationally and 
internationally recognized expert in educational assessment 
and psychometrics . 

In founding EdMetric, Dr. Egan sought to address  
educational agencies ’ need for psychometric capacity. To 
this  end, she has  built a  foundation for EdMetric’s  work by 
thoughtfully assembling a team of researchers , educators , 
policy leaders , and psychometricians  whose combined 
experience spans  more than five decades  and includes  
work with s tate and federal education agencies , 
as sessment vendors , and assessment consortia (including 
Dynamic Learning Maps , Smarter Balanced Assessment 
Consortium,and ELPA21).



Tasks/Target Dates



SC Acuity Tool
Overall Alignment

C

TASK Start Time Finish Time

Task 1 – Literature Review
and State Agency Survey

October 2022 January 31, 2023

Task 2 – Development of
Recommendations

February 2023 March 15, 2023

Task 3 – Assessment 
Design

March 16, 2023 June 30, 2023

Task 4 – Ongoing Technical
Assistance

July 2, 2023 (if approved) June 30, 2024



Questions

C



1 

Monthly DDSN Staff Report - Financial Approval & Threshold Reporting for November, 2022. 

The purpose of this monthly report is to ensure staff comprehensively reports on all Executive Limitation Policy (800-CP-
03) financial transactions for approval and financial threshold reporting requirements.  The Finance and Audit Committee
will decide which items require presentation to the Commission for a formal vote, as well as which items need only be
reported via this report to the Commission to ensure transparent reporting.  After the Finance and Audit Committee’s
decisions, this report will highlight item wording in red to notify Commission that the items will not need a formal vote
and highlight items in yellow to indicate that the item will require a formal Commission vote to approve.

I. New Non-Service Contracts $200,000 or Greater:

II. Existing Service Contracts Increasing $200,000 or Greater (simple list if based on indiv. choice; detail
summary if not):

III. $200,000 or Greater Increase in Personnel Positions for a Program or Division:

IV. New CPIP or Re-Scoping of an Existing CPIP:

V. New Consulting Contract:

VI. New Federal Grant:

VII. Current Year Spending Plan Revisions:

1) Request to increase threshold of Cooperative Training Grants from $400K to $1M in FY2023 Spending
Plan. Also request that these grants be approved as multi-year grants.

(NOTE:  In August of each year, a report of all prior FY non-service expenditures by vendor over $200,000 will be presented as a “post-payment” 
review.  This will add visibility for expenditures from contracts originated in prior FYs and vendors with separate purchases aggregating over 
$200,000 in current FY.)  

Attachment E



2 

Provider Grants for shared/cooperative services for training and/or staffing 

As the landscape for service provision evolves and the labor market changes, DDSN Providers are presented with the 
opportunity and challenge of rethinking approaches to staffing and training.  DDSN staff seek approval for two (2) 
competitive grant programs designed to facilitate cooperative approaches to meet these needs.  Research has shown that 
such cooperative models are often used in other sectors and states to effectively meet training and staffing needs. 
Specifically, the goal of the shared staffing grant program will be to encourage the development of sharing of full-time 
staff hired either by the cooperative entity for common administrative functions which require professional staff but for 
which one provider, alone, may not have full-time work.  Those administrative functions may include but not limited to 
accounting and human resources.  Such a cooperative model would financially benefit all participating cooperative 
providers.   

The aim of the shared training grant is to encourage and support staff training needs that are shared by Providers but are 
also not appropriate for DDSN to provide.  When contracting with DDSN and/or enrolling with Medicaid, each provider 
asserts its ability to deliver the services in accordance with the applicable policies and standards for which it contracts/ 
enrolls.  While DDSN has a role in training, DDSN cannot assume the responsibility for training newly hired staff that are 
required for service delivery.  For some providers, especially small providers, the ability to train newly hired staff in key 
positions (e.g., Residential Services Director, QIDP, Day Services Director, etc.) is limited.  Cooperative models are often 
used in other sectors and states to ensure the knowledge specific to the function or role is transferred from professional 
to professional.  Cooperative training models can offer providers within the cooperative the opportunity to share 
knowledge, promising practices, and offer the opportunity to problem solve with other professionals.  

DDSN is optimistic that these grant opportunities will encourage and support innovative and financially viable approaches 
to Providers’ needs in these areas. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference Number: 275-05-DD

Title of Document: General Duties of the South Carolina Department of 

Disabilities and Special Needs (DDSN) Internal Audit 

Division 

Date of Issue: February 14, 2002 

Date of Last Revision: November 17, 2022 (REVISED) 

Effective Date: November 17, 2022 

Applicability: DDSN Central Office, DDSN Regional Centers DDSN-Operated 

Community Settings, DSN Boards and Contracted Service 

Providers of all Service Programs 

Purpose and Mission 

The purpose of the South Carolina Department of Disabilities and Special Needs (DDSN’s) Internal 

Audit Division (IA) is to provide independent, objective assurance and consulting services designed to 

add value and improve the agency’s operations.  The mission of internal audit is to enhance and 

protect organizational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice, and insight.  IA 

helps DDSN accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 

improve the effectiveness of governance, risk management, and control processes. 

Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 

IA will govern itself by adherence to the mandatory elements of The Institute of Internal 

Auditors’(IIA) International Professional Practices Framework, including the Core Principles for the 

Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the International Standards for the 

Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and the Definition of Internal Auditing.  The Internal Audit 

Director will report periodically to senior management and the Finance and Audit Committee 

regarding the Internal Audit Division’s conformance to the Code of Ethics and the Standards. 

Michelle G. Fry, J.D., Ph.D. 

State Director 

Janet Brock Priest 

Associate State Director 

Operations  

Lori Manos 

Associate State Director 

Policy 

Constance Holloway 

General Counsel 

Harley T. Davis, Ph.D. 

Chief Administrative Officer 

Quincy Swygert 

Chief Financial Officer 

Greg Meetze 

Chief Information Officer 

COMMISSION 
Stephanie M. Rawlinson 

Chairman 

Barry D. Malphrus 

Vice Chairman 

Robin B. Blackwood 

Secretary 

Gary Kocher, M.D. 

Eddie L. Miller 

David L. Thomas 

Michelle Woodhead 3440 Harden Street Extension  

Columbia, South Carolina 29203 

(803) 898-9600

Toll Free: 888/DSN-INFO 

Home Page:  ddsn.sc.gov 

Attachment F



275-05-DD

November 17, 2022

Page 2

Authority 

It is the policy of DDSN to establish and support an Internal Audit Division as an independent 

appraisal function to examine and evaluate DDSN and provider activities as a service to Executive 

Management and the DDSN Commission. 

The State Director shall appoint the Director of Internal Audit, subject to the approval of the full 

DDSN Commission.  The Director of Internal Audit shall be responsible for the day-to-day 

administration and operation of the Internal Audit Division, subject to policies, rules and regulations 

adopted by the DDSN Commission. 

Subject to the approval of the State Director, the Director of Internal Audit shall prescribe the 

organizational structure and the personnel necessary to carry out the Internal Audit function. 

The Director of Internal Audit reports administratively to the State Director and functionally to the 

Finance and Audit Committee Chair of the DDSN Commission. 

The Director of Internal Audit will have unrestricted access to, and communicate and interact directly 

with, the Finance and Audit Committee and DDSN Commission, as necessary, including in private 

meetings without management present. 

To establish, maintain, and assure that DDSN IA has sufficient authority to fulfill its duties, the 

Finance and Audit Committee will: 

• Approve the IA Division’s charter;

• Approve the risk-based internal audit plan;

• Approve the Internal Audit Division’s budget and resource plan;

• Receive communications from the Director of Internal Audit on the Internal Audit Division’s

performance relative to its plan and other matters;

• Approve decisions regarding the appointment and removal of the Director of Internal Audit;

• Approve the remuneration of the Director of Internal Audit; and

• Make appropriate inquiries of management and the Director of Internal Audit to determine

whether there is inappropriate scope or resource limitations.

IA is authorized to: 

• Have full, free, and unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, and personnel

pertinent to carrying out any DDSN engagement, subject to accountability for confidentiality

and safeguarding of records and information.

• Have full, free and unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, and personnel within

the scope of DDSN services pertinent to carrying out any DSN Board or Contracted Service

Provider engagement, subject to accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding of records

and information.

• Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine scopes of work, apply techniques

required to accomplish audit objectives, and issue reports.

• Obtain assistance from the necessary personnel of DDSN, as well as other specialized services

from within or outside DDSN, in order to complete the engagement.



275-05-DD

November 17, 2022

Page 3

Independence and Objectivity 

The Director of Internal Audit will ensure that the IA Division remains free from all conditions that 

threaten the ability of internal auditors to carry out their responsibilities in an unbiased manner, 

including matters of audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, and report content.  If the 

Director of Internal Audit determines that independence or objectivity may be impaired in fact or 

appearance, the details of the impairment will be disclosed to appropriate parties. 

Internal auditors will maintain an unbiased mental attitude that allows them to perform engagements 

objectively and in such a manner that they believe in their work product, that no quality compromises 

are made, and that they do not subordinate their judgment on audit matters to others. 

Internal Auditors will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the activities 

audited.  Accordingly, Internal Auditors will not implement internal controls, develop procedures, 

install systems, prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair their judgment, 

including: 

• Assessing specific operations for which they had responsibility within the previous year.

• Performing any operational duties for DDSN or its contracted service providers.

• Initiating or approving transactions external to the Internal Audit Division.

• Directing the activities of any DDSN employee not employed by the Internal Audit Division,

except to the extent that such employees have been appropriately assigned to auditing teams or

to otherwise assist internal auditors.

Where the Internal Audit Director has or is expected to have roles and/or responsibilities that fall 

outside of internal auditing, safeguards will be established to limit impairments to independence or 

objectivity. 

Internal Auditors will: 

• Disclose any impairment of independence or objectivity, in fact or appearance, to appropriate

parties.

• Exhibit professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and communicating information about

the activity or process being examined.

• Make balanced assessments of all available and relevant facts and circumstances.

• Take necessary precautions to avoid being unduly influenced by their own interests or by others

in forming judgments.

The Director of Internal Audit will confirm to the Finance and Audit Committee, at least annually, the 

organizational independence of the Internal Audit Division. 

The Director of Internal Audit will disclose to the Finance and Audit Committee any interference and 

related implications in determining the scope of internal auditing, performing work, and/or 

communicating results. 



275-05-DD

November 17, 2022

Page 4

Scope of Internal Audit Activities 

The scope of internal audit activities encompasses, but is not limited to, objective examinations of 

evidence for the purpose of providing independent assessments to the DDSN Commission and 

management on the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management, and control 

processes for DDSN.  Internal audit assessments include evaluating whether: 

• Risks relating to the achievement of DDSN’s strategic objectives are appropriately identified

and managed.

• The actions of DDSN’s commissioners, executive management, employees and contractors are

in compliance with DDSN’s directives, standards, policies, procedures and applicable laws and

regulations.

• The results of operations or programs are consistent with established goals and objectives.

• Operations or programs are being carried out effectively and efficiently.

• Established processes and systems enable compliance with the directives, standards, policies,

procedures, laws and regulations that could significantly impact DDSN.

• Information and the means used to identify, measure, analyze, classify and report such

information are reliable and have integrity.

• Resources and assets are acquired economically, used efficiently, and protected adequately.

The Director of Internal Audit will report periodically to senior management and the Finance and 

Audit Committee regarding: 

• The Internal Audit Division’s purpose, authority, and responsibility.

• The Internal Audit Division’s plan and performance relative to its plan.

• The Internal Audit Division’s conformance with the IIA’s Code of Ethics and Standards, and

action plans to address any significant conformance issues.

• Significant risk exposures and control issues, including fraud risks, governance issues, and other

matters requiring the attention of, or request by, the Finance and Audit Committee.

• Results of audit engagements or other activities.

• Resource requirements.

• Any response to risk by management that may be unacceptable to DDSN.

The Internal Audit Director also coordinates activities, where possible, and considers relying upon the 

work of other internal and external assurance and consulting service providers as needed.  The Internal 

Audit Division may perform advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of 

which will be agreed with the client, provided the Internal Audit Division does not assume 

management responsibility. 

Opportunities for improving the efficiency of governance, risk management, and control processes 

may be identified during engagements.  These opportunities will be communicated to the appropriate 

level of management. 



275-05-DD

November 17, 2022

Page 5

Responsibility 

The Internal Audit Director has the responsibility to: 

• Submit an annual risk-based internal audit plan to the State Director, Finance and Audit

Committee, and DDSN Commission for review and approval.

• Communicate to the State Director and the Finance and Audit Committee the impact of resource

limitations on the internal audit plan.

• Review and adjust the internal audit plan, as necessary, in response to changes in DDSN’s

priorities, risks, operations, programs, systems and controls.

• Communicate to the State Director and the Finance and Audit Committee any significant

interim changes to the internal audit plan.

• Ensure each engagement of the internal audit plan is executed, including the establishment of

objectives and scope, the assignment of appropriate and adequately supervised resources, the

documentation of work programs and testing results, and the communication of engagement

results with applicable conclusions and recommendations to appropriate parties.

• Follow up on engagement findings/observations and corrective actions, and report periodically

to senior management and the Finance and Audit Committee any corrective actions not

effectively implemented.

• Ensure the principles of integrity, objectivity, confidentiality, and competency are applied and

upheld.

• Maintain a professional audit staff that collectively possesses or obtains the knowledge, skills,

experience, professional certifications, and other competencies needed to meet the requirements

of the internal audit charter.

• Ensure emerging trends and successful practices in internal auditing are considered.

• Establish and ensure adherence to policies and procedures designed to guide the Internal Audit

Division.

• Ensure adherence to DDSN’s relevant policies and procedures, unless such policies and

procedures conflict with the internal audit charter.  Any such conflicts will be resolved or

otherwise communicated to senior management and the Finance and Audit Committee.

• Ensure conformance of the Internal Audit Division with the Standards, with the following

qualification:

o If the Internal Audit Division is prohibited by law or regulation from conformance with certain

parts of the Standards, the Internal Audit Director will ensure appropriate disclosures and will

ensure conformance with all other parts of the Standards.

Financial Sanctions 

A financial sanction is only applicable to repeat internal audit findings/observations as they relate to 

the health, safety and/or welfare of individuals being served. 

The sanction will only apply when follow-up procedures are conducted and the accepted corrective 

action from the initial audit was not implemented.  The Provider will then be given notice and be 

allowed 90 days to implement the agreed upon corrective action.  If in the subsequent visit (i.e., the 

third visit), the corrective action plan was not implemented, the Provider will receive a financial 

sanction in the amount of a minimum of $1,000 with a potential increase based on the discretion of the 

Finance and Audit Committee. 



275-05-DD

November 17, 2022

Page 6

An appeals process will be available to any Provider who is assessed a financial sanction for repeat 

internal audit findings/observations as they relate to the health, safety, and/or welfare of individuals 

being served.  The appeal shall be requested within 30 days of notice of the sanction.  The Appeals 

Committee membership will include:  two (2) DDSN staff members; two (2) community provider 

members from each provider association; and one (1) consumer or family member.  Once appointed, 

the Appeals Committee shall decide among the membership who shall be named as chair.  Once 

appointed, the members shall serve for two (2) years. 

Internal Audit is responsible for monitoring compliance with reporting deadlines established in DDSN 

directive 275-04-DD: Procedures for Implementation of DDSN Audit Policy for DSN Boards, and 

275-06-DD: Procedures for Implementation of DDSN Audit Policy for Contracted Service Providers,

and reporting the results of monitoring to the Finance Division for invoicing of financial sanctions,

where required by policy.

Quality Assurance and Improvement Program 

IA will maintain a quality assurance and improvement program that covers all aspects of the internal 

audit activity.  The program will include an evaluation of the Internal Audit Division’s conformance 

with the Standards and an evaluation of whether Internal Auditors apply the IIA’s Code of Ethics.  

The program will also assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit activity and identify 

opportunities for improvement. 

The Director of Internal Audit will communicate to senior management and the Finance and Audit 

Committee on the internal audit activity’s quality assurance and improvement program, including 

results of ongoing internal assessments and external assessments conducted at least once every five 

years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside DDSN. 

Barry D. Malphrus Stephanie M. Rawlinson 

Vice Chairman Chairman 



South Carolina Department  

of  

Disabilities and Special Needs 

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY STANDARDS

Effective July 1, 2012 

Effective July 17, 2015 

Effective August 31, 2017 

Effective January 1, 2023 

Attachment G



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 2 

INTRODUCTION 

 

 

 

The mission of the South Carolina Department of Disabilities and Special Needs (DDSN) is to assist people 

with disabilities and their families through choice in meeting needs, pursuing possibilities, and achieving life 

goals, and minimize the occurrence and reduce the severity of disabilities through prevention. 

 

DDSN has embraced certain values that guide it in its efforts to assist people and their families and principles 

that are expected to be features of all services and supports.  They are: 

 

Values:  Our Guiding Beliefs 

 

Health, safety and well-being of each person 

Dignity and respect for each person 

Individual and family participation, choice, control, and responsibility 

Relationships with family, friends, and community connections 

Personal growth and accomplishments 

 

 

 

 

Principles:  Features of Services and Supports 

 

Person-Centered 

Responsive, efficient, and accountable 

Practical, positive, and appropriate 

Strengths-Based, results-oriented 

Opportunities to be productive, and maximize potential 

Best and promising practices 

 

 

 

 

These Administrative Agency Standards serve as a foundation on which DDSN contracted services and 

supports are provided.  The standards set forth in this document, unless otherwise noted, will be used to 

evaluate all Agencies receiving funds from DDSN for service provision.  Therefore, these standards are 

applicable to DSN Boards and Contracted Service Providers, including Financial Management Service 

providers. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 3 

 
 

GENERAL OPERATIONS 

 

 

 
STANDARD 

101 The Agency has a clear statement of its mission that is consistent with DDSN’s mission and is reviewed 

regularly by the governing board/body. 

 

102 The Agency provides information about its mission, services, and relationships with major funding sources to 

service users, their family members/advocates, and the community at large. 

 

103 The Agency complies with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 

 

104 The Agency complies with all applicable policies, procedures, and standards issued by DDSN. 

 

105 The Agency complies with the terms of its contract with DDSN. 

 

106 The Agency protects the rights of people. 

 

107 The Agency uses positive approaches in all service and support activities. 

 

108 The Agency promotes consumer choice and decision making in service delivery. 

 

109 The Agency engages in activities that educate and inform people about the Agency itself, the abilities and 

talents of people with disabilities, local, state, and federal resources, and DDSN. 

 

110 The Agency has a records management system for tracking and safeguarding individual and Agency records 

and complies with applicable laws, regulations, and policies. 

 

111 As required by DDSN, the Agency keeps information about its service users up to date on Therap, DDSN’s 

Consumer Data Support System/Service Tracking System and Waiver Tracking Systems. 

 

The Therap modules required by DDSN can be found at:  https://secure.therapservices.net/auth/login 

 

112 The Agency has established internal monitoring processes to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of 

participants. 

 

113 The Agency has established internal monitoring processes to ensure the integrity of the services provided 

meets the scope of the defined service(s), DDSN, and Medicaid requirements. 

 

114 The Agency has established clear policies/procedures for documenting service delivery, consistent with the 

scope of the defined service(s), DDSN, and Medicaid requirements. 

 

 

https://secure.therapservices.net/auth/login


Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 4 

 
 

GOVERNING BOARD:  DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS (DSN) BOARD 

 
 

 
STANDARD 

201 When the Administrative Agency is a DSN Board, the Board of Directors (BOD) meets all state and local laws 

and regulations related to composition and operation.  Refer to S.C. Code Ann. § 44-20-375 to 385 (2018) 
 

202 

 

The membership of the BOD is representative of the community it serves. 
 

203 

 

The BOD is the governing body and determines the general direction for the Agency by establishing policies 

pertaining to the operation of the Agency.  These policies are reviewed at least annually by the Executive Director 

and reaffirmed by the Board.  The Board of Directors will review, approve and document the vote in the minutes 

and the spending limits, to include credit cards, of the Executive Director on an annual basis. 
 

Polices include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Agency structure. 

• Personnel. 

• Preventing and Reporting Abuse. 

• Reporting Critical Incidents. 

• Fiscal Accountability. 

• Staff training and Development. 

• Emergency Response/Disaster Preparedness. 

• Program and Services. 

• Code of Ethics. 

• Records Retention Policy covering Individual Service Records and Official Agency business. 
 

204 

 

Training is provided to members of the BOD within 90 days of appointment to the Board and their participation is 

documented. 
 

205 

 

The BOD participates in and oversees the fiscal management of the Agency and approves the annual budget, 

reviews comprehensive financial reports at every meeting and reviews an annual audit report including a written 

management audit letter. 
 

• Management audit letter comments are presented to the BOD by the external auditor or CPA. 
 

206 All board meetings and minutes comply with the South Carolina’s Freedom of Information Act.  
 

• All boards must adopt consistent rules of procedure including a records retention policy for all official agency 

business. 
 

• Minutes, policies, and by-laws must be consistent with state and local laws (S.C. Code Ann. § 30-4-20 (Supp. 

2022)). 
 

207 The BOD: 
 

• Employs an Executive Director with at least a bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in a 

human services field of study and at least three (3) years of experience working with people who have 

disabilities with at least one (1) year of experience in supervision/administration, and 
 

• Delegates the authority for the day-to-day management of the Agency in accordance with written policy. 
 

208 The BOD defines the expectations for the Executive Director’s performance and at least annually evaluates and 

provides feedback regarding performance. 

 
 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 5 

 

GOVERNING BOARD/BODY:  QUALIFIED PROVIDERS 
 

 

 
STANDARD 

301 

 

When the Administrative Agency is a Contracted Provider, the governing body of the Contracted Provider 

determines the general direction for the Agency by establishing policies pertaining to the operation of the Agency.  

These policies are reviewed at least annually by the President/Chief Executive Officer (CEO) unless the provider 

agency is a sole proprietor partnership. 
 

Polices include but are not limited to: 
 

• Agency structure. 

• Personnel. 

• Preventing and Reporting Abuse. 

• Reporting Critical Incidents. 

• Fiscal Accountability. 

• Staff training and Development. 

• Emergency Response/Disaster Preparedness. 

• Program and Services. 

• Code of Ethics. 

 

302 

 

The governing body participates in the fiscal management of the Agency and approves the annual budget, reviews 

comprehensive financial reports at every meeting and reviews an annual audit report including a written 

management audit letter for SCDDSN contracted services. 
 

• Management audit letter comments are presented to the governing board by the external auditor or CPA. 

 

303 The governing body: 
 

• Employs Executive leadership where at least one member has a bachelor’s degree from an accredited college 

or university in a human services field of study and at least three (3) years’ experience working with people 

who have disabilities with at least one (1) year of experience in supervision/administration, and 
 

• Delegates the authority for the day-to-day management of the Agency in accordance with written policy. 

 

**Does not apply to sole proprietor partnership** 

 

304 The governing body defines the expectations for the President/CEO’s performance and at least annually evaluates 

and provides feedback regarding performance. 

 

**Does not apply to sole proprietor partnership** 

 

305 All board meetings and minutes related to DDSN contracted services comply with the South Carolina’s Freedom 

of Information Act.  

 

• All boards must adopt consistent rules of procedure including a records retention policy for all official agency 

business wherein records are retained for at least six (6) years. 

 

Minutes, policies, and by-laws must be consistent with state and local laws (S.C. Code Ann. § 30-4-20 (Supp. 

2022)). 

 

**Does not apply to sole proprietor partnership** 

 
 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 6 

 
 

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 
 

 

 
STANDARD  

401 The Agency has in place clear lines of authority and written responsibilities for all staff members. 

 

402 

 

A specific staff member must be named to administer the Agency in the absence of the President/CEO or 

Executive Director and be fully authorized to make decisions as the acting President/CEO or Executive Director. 

 

403 When the Agency provides residential services, the Agency’s upper level management staff will conduct 

quarterly, unannounced visits to all residential settings, to assure that the staffing is sufficient and supervision is 

provided. 

 

• “Residential setting” means a licensed, certified or assessed location in which Residential Habilitation is 

provided. 

 

• When the residential setting uses a shift model for staffing, visits during a year must include a visit made 

during each shift 

 

• When the residential setting does not utilize a shift model (e.g., CTH-I, SLP-I), visits need only to be 

conducted quarterly and need not be conducted on third or overnight shifts. 

 

• When the residential setting is an SLP-II, overnight or 3rd shift visits in each apartment is not required. 

 

• Quarterly mean four times per year with no more than four months between visits. 

 

• When managers are used to conduct the unannounced visits, managers are not allowed to conduct visits in 

homes for which they are directly responsible, but are allowed to visit homes for which their counterparts are 

responsible.  NOTE:  A manager, who is the immediate supervisor of any staff of the home, is considered to 

be “directly responsible.” 

 

• Visits must be documented and documentation must include the date/time of the visit, the names of the 

staff/caregivers and residents present, notation of any concerns and the actions taken in response to the 

concern. 

 

 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 7 

  
PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION 

 

 STANDARD  

501 Adequate numbers of qualified staff are employed to enable the Agency to conduct business and provide services 

in accordance with applicable local, state and federal rules, regulations, and standards and with the Agency’s 

mission. 

 

502 The Agency maintains personnel policies which meet all governmental fair labor regulations, are approved by the 

Governing Board/Body, and are reviewed at least annually by the President/CEO or Executive Director. 

 

503 The Agency has personnel policies and procedures for screening employees in order to minimize unnecessary 

and unreasonable risk and include, but are not limited to, the Agency’s position on the following: 

 

a. Employee benefits; 

 

b. Procedures for hiring and recruiting including its position regarding the prohibition of hiring of people with 

substantiated allegations of abuse or neglect; 

 

c. Procedures for verifying references, previous employment, and credentials; 

 

d. Rules for employee conduct; 

 

e. Lines of authority for handling personnel matters including the disciplinary system to be used; 

 

f. The probationary period for new employees; 

 

g. The schedules for wages, hours, and salaries; 

 

h. Employee vacations, holidays, annual leave, sick leave, family sick leave, and staff absences;  

 

i. Initial and ongoing training, orientation, and skill development for all staff; 

 

j. Criminal background check; 

 

k. Drug screening; and, 

 

l. The use of screening, training, and supervision of volunteers. 

 

504 When the Agency is a DSN Board, it has a policy which prohibits the following: 

 

• The employment of or contracting with a Board member or relative of a Board member. 

 

• Employment of or contracting with a relative of the Executive Director. 

 

• A supervisor from supervising an employee who is a relative. 

 

505 A position/job description is available for each position. 

 

506 The Agency keeps comprehensive personnel records for all employees. 

 

Employee records may include, but are not limited to: 
 

a. Application form, signed and dated which contains education, past work history, references and verification 

of references, past employment, and appropriate credentials, for the particular job; 
 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 8 

PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION 

 

 STANDARD  

b. Job description that is signed and dated; 
 

c. Cumulative leave records; 
 

d. Performance evaluation performed annually; 
 

e. Personnel actions such as raises, promotions, commendations, etc.; 
 

f. Disciplinary action, as applicable with documentation of consultation and action taken; 
 

g. Authorization allowing agency to perform a criminal investigation (this may be part of the application); 
 

h. A record of inspection of the official Department of Motor Vehicles driving record for employees who will 

be transporting participants, as required by the Agency’s insurance carrier. 
 

i. Verification, no more than 30 days old, that the employee is free from tuberculosis or other communicable 

diseases; and, 
 

j. Documentation via certified copies of educational records that the employee meets all educational 

qualifications established by DDSN licensing and program standards. 

 

507 The Agency regularly evaluates and provides feedback to employees on their performance. 

 

508 The Agency will ensure all employees are informed and sign annual statements of understanding that fraud, 

abuse, neglect or exploitation can lead to arrest and conviction and termination of employment.  New employee 

training shall cover these issues. 

 

The Annual Statement should also include the following statement concerning the False Claims Recovery Act: 

 

“I am aware of the False Claims Act and that the Federal Government can impose a penalty on any person who 

submits a claim to the federal government that he or she knows (or should know) is false.  I am also aware that I 

must report abuse of the Medicaid program and that I am protected by Whistleblower Laws.” 

 

509 The Agency complies with the provisions of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 - False Claims Recovery 

 

a. Establish written procedures for all employees, including management, and contractor or agent detailing 

information about the False Claims Recovery Act. 

 

b. Must have written policies detailing the entity’s policies and procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, 

waste, and abuse. 
 

c. Formal Employee communications  must contain: 
 

• Discussion of the laws described in the written policies; 

 

• Rights of the employees to be protected as whistleblowers, and 

 

• Discussion of the entity’s policies and procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, waste, and abuse. 

 

510 The DSN Board shall comply with State of South Carolina Employee Bonus Guidelines. 

 

 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 9 

 
 

FISCAL MANAGEMENT 

 

 

 
STANDARD 

601 The Agency manages its fiscal affairs in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and 

sound business principles. 

 

602 The Agency’s assets and resources are properly insured. 

 

To include, but not limited to: 
 

a. Fire and Causality; 
 

b. Liability; 
 

c. Vehicle; 
 

d. Bonding of officers, employees, and agents of the Agency who are authorized to handle or be responsible for 

the Agency’s and/or service users’ funds; 
 

e. Directors and Officer’s insurance; 
 

f. Tort liability; and, 
 

g. Workers’ Compensation. 

 

603 Insurance types and amounts are reviewed and approved by the Governing Board/Body. 

 

604 All contracts and agreements to provide services are reviewed annually for appropriateness by the Governing 

Board/Body. 

 

605 When an Agency charges for DDSN Contracted Service Delivery, it has a fee schedule that has been approved in 

writing by the Governing Board/Body and by DDSN.  The fee schedule is provided to the service users or their 

guardians upon request. 

 

606 DSN Boards grant equal access to Individual Family Support Funds to all who are eligible. 

 

607 The DSN Board shall provide DDSN copies of financial statements as of the end of each calendar quarter at a 

minimum.  These financial statements shall include, but not be limited to, a statement of financial position and 

results of operations of fiscal year to date.  The Provider shall present these financial statements to the DSN 

Board’s Board of Directors. 

 

608 The DSN Board shall submit an annual cost allocation plan prepared in accordance with Medicaid cost principles 

in accordance with DDSN Directive 250-05-DD:  Cost Principles for Grants and Contracts with Community 

Providers. 

 

609 All expenditures of DDSN funds shall be in accordance with DDSN Directive 250-05-DD:  Cost Principles for 

Grants and Contracts with Community Providers. 

 

610 The Agency shall submit a certified annual audit of its agency’s financial statements as specified in DDSN 

Directive 275-04-DD:  Procedures for Implementation of DDSN Provider Audit Policy for DSN Boards, by 

September 30th of each year for the prior year, unless DDSN provides an extension.  The Provider also shall 

submit a reconciliation of the cost reports to the audited financial statements. 

 

 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 10 

 

QUALITY/RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

 STANDARD 

 

701 The Agency has a Quality Management Plan to include the following information: 

 

• Performance measures. 

• Performance improvement targets and strategies. 

• Methods to obtain feedback relating to personal experience from individuals, staff persons and other affected 

parties. 

• Data sources used to measure performance. 

• Roles and responsibilities of the staff persons related to the practice of quality management. 

 

The Agency shall revise the quality management plan no less than every three (3) years.  A comprehensive 

quality management plan should draw ideas, standards, and measures from multiple sources and align with the 

Mission, Vision, Values, Principles, and Priorities of DDSN.  Providers are encouraged to seek consultation and 

accreditation from nationally recognized leaders in the field. 
 

702 The President/CEO or Executive Director reviews all internal and external quality assurance reports and ensures 

implementation of Plans of Correction. 
 

703 The Agency has a process for soliciting and analyzing feedback on services and supports from service users, 

their families/advocates, employees and as appropriate, other agencies. 
 

704 The Agency uses solicited feedback to improve or expand services.  The provider will track major areas of need 

identified as a result of the annual participant/family satisfaction surveys and actions planned and taken. 
 

705 The Agency participates in statewide surveys to evaluate the service delivery system.  This includes surveys for 

service participants, staff, and family members. 
 

706 The Agency has a Risk Management Committee that meets on a quarterly basis to review data collection, 

training and monitoring activities, and the completion of tracking/trending/analysis. 
 

707 The Agency completing the administrative review must follow reporting requirements and track/trend/analyze 

Allegations of Abuse, Neglect or Exploitation on a quarterly basis using the following information: 

 

1. The total number of allegations made; 

 

2. The types of allegations, including a trend of when and where they were reported; 

 

3. The number of substantiated allegations, as determined by local law enforcement, SLED, DSS, or the 

Attorney General’s Office; 

 

4. The number of Administrative Findings, as determined by verified Standard of Care allegations, through 

DSS or the State Long Term Care Ombudsman’s Office or a Regional Ombudsman. A distinction should be 

made between allegations with known and unknown perpetrators and the types of violations cited (i.e., 

Administrative Oversight, Dignity & Respect, Supervision, etc.); 

 

5. The number of initial reports submitted in compliance with policy; and 

 

6. The number of final reports submitted in compliance with policy. 

 

Narrative information may also be analyzed in order to identify more specific trends. 

 

 



Administrative Agency Standards (Revised 11/17/22) 

Page 11 

708 The Agency will must follow reporting requirements and track/trend/analyze Critical incidents and General 

Event Reports on a quarterly basis using the following information: 

1. The type and frequency of incidents reported, including a trend of when and where they were reported, and

ensuring the appropriate reporting category has been selected;

2. The number of initial reports submitted in compliance with policy; and

3. The number of final reports submitted in compliance with policy.

Narrative information may also be analyzed in order to identify more specific trends. 

709 The Agency must follow reporting requirements and track/trend/analyze Medication Errors/Events on a 

quarterly basis using the definitions and procedures contained in DDSN Directive 100-29-DD:  Medication 

Error/Event Reporting.  Three (3) categories of errors/events will be analyzed: 

A. Medication errors;

B. Transcription/documentation errors; and

C. Red flag events.

Providers are required to maintain a monthly medication error rate, per service location, to identify trends related 

to specific settings. 

710 The Agency must follow reporting requirements and track/trend/analyze the use of restraints and/or other 

restrictive interventions on a quarterly basis by reviewing documentation of each restraint employed, by type, to 

include the staff implementing the restraint, the duration of the restraint, notification provided to the Human 

Rights Committee, and notification provided to the Behavior Supports provider.  When planned restraints are 

included in the Behavior Support Plans, the provider ensures the Behavior Support Plans are submitted to DDSN 

for approval. 

When restrictive interventions are employed as a default action because other measures in the Behavior Support 

Plan were not effective, the restraint/restrictive intervention must be reported as a Critical Incident.  

Consumer/staff injury resulting from the use of restraints must be tracked and analyzed.  Narrative information 

may also be analyzed in order to identify more specific trends with a continual emphasis on restraint reduction 

and elimination.  If there are no restraints or restrictive interventions reported for the prior review period, the 

Agency must document their monitoring efforts to ensure unauthorized restraints were not implemented. 



SCDDSN Incident Management Report 5-year trend data  
for Community-Based Services (Includes Residential & Day Service Settings) Thru 9/30/2022 

Allegations of Abuse, Neglect, Exploitation FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 5 YEAR 
Average 

FY23 
Annualized 
(Thru Q1) 

# of Individual ANE Allegations 636 620 651 565 521 599 524 (131) 
# of ANE Incident Reports (One report may involve multiple allegations) 450 415 436 388 371 412 388 (97) 
Rate per 100 11.9 9.6 11.8 10.9 9.3 10.7 9.3 
# ANE Allegations resulting in Criminal Arrest 23 8 14 7 14 13 4 (1) 
# ANE Allegations with Administrative Findings 
from DSS or State Long-Term Care Ombudsman 

206 123 182 204 149 173 100 (25) 

ANE Allegations: Comparison to Arrest Data & Administrative Findings 

Critical Incident Reporting FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 
5 YEAR 
Average 

FY23 
Annualized 
(Thru Q1) 

# Critical Incidents 1071 916 982 974 1245 1037 1220 (305) 
Rate per 100 11.9 9.6 11.8 10.9 15.4 11.9 15.2 
# Choking Events 58 71 65 57 68 64 84 (21) 
# Law Enforcement Calls 243 311 310 296 296 291 232 (58) 
# Suicidal Threats 116 170 193 251 212 188 304 (76) 
# Emergency Restraints or Restraints w/ Injury 26 47 56 51 35 43 48 (12) 

5 Year Critical Incident Trend Report- Community Settings 

Death Reporting FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 
5 YEAR 
Average 

FY23 
Annualized 
(Thru Q1) 

# of Deaths Reported- Community Settings  73 78 86 130 102 94 100 (25) 

Rate per 100 1.6 1.6 1.9 2.8 2.2 2.0 2.2 

Report Date: 11/8/2022 

636 620 651
565 521

599
524

23 8 14 7 14 13 1

206
123

182 204
145 173

100

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 5 year average FY23 Annualized

 # ANE Allegations # of Criminal Arrests # of  Administrative Findings

68

51

29
6

35

21
2

63 50

29
1

43

18
8

84

28

23
2

48

30
4

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Choking Elopement Law Enforcement Restraint Suicidal Threats

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 5 year average FY23 Annualized

Attachment H



SCDDSN Incident Management Report 5-year trend data  
for Regional Centers Thru 9/30/2022 

Allegations of Abuse, Neglect, & Exploitation FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 5 YEAR 
Average 

FY23 
Annualized 
(Thru Q1) 

# of Individual ANE Allegations 135 139 187 187 251 179 180 (45) 
# of ANE Incident Reports (One report may involve multiple allegations) 97 102 136 138 165 128 152 (38) 
Rate per 100 19.2 20.9 28.9 27.9 38.0 27.0 29.0 
# ANE Allegations resulting in Criminal Arrest 2 2 5 19 4 6 4 (1) 
# ANE Allegations with Administrative Findings 
from DSS or State Long-Term Care Ombudsman 

34 34 44 43 53 41 48 (12) 

ANE Allegations: Comparison to Arrest Data & Administrative Findings 

Critical Incident Reporting FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 
5 YEAR 
Average 

FY23 
Annualized 
(Thru Q1) 

# Critical Incidents 144 132 135 124 160 139 152 (38) 
Rate per 100 20.6 18.6 20.8 19.1 24.2 21.1 24.1 
# Choking Events 5 6 3 5 8 5 8 (2) 
# Law Enforcement Calls 5 8 9 9 10 8 24 (6) 
# Suicidal Threats 16 60 56 73 64 54 20 (5) 
# Emergency Restraints or Restraints w/ Injury 26 22 24 13 24 22 44 (11) 

5 Year Critical Incident Trend Report- Regional Centers 

Death Reporting FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 
5 YEAR 
Average 

FY23 
Annualized 
(Thru Q1) 

# of Deaths Reported - Regional Centers  27 33 22 48 36 33 24 (6) 

Rate per 100 3.8 4.6 3.4 7.0 5.4 4.8 4.0 

Report Date: 11/8/2022 

135 133

187 187

251

179 180

2 2 4
18 4 6 4

34 34 44 43 53 41 48

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 5 year average FY23 Annualized
ANE Allegations # of Criminal Arrests # of  Administrative Findings

8 9 10

24

64

5 4

8

22

54

8

4

24

44

20

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Choking Elopement Law Enforcement Restraint Suicidal Threats

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 5 year average FY23 Annualized



Comparative DSP Hiring Reports: October 2021 to October 2022 
*data is reset on January 1 every year 

The report compares the month of October 2021 and October 2022.  
Total average of days to process hires has decreased by (25%) in process time. 
Total Separations:  

• October 2021: 40 employees
• October 2022: 31 employees

October 2021 the agency had a net decrease of (197) DSP’s.   
October 2022 the agency has reached net change of (0) DSP’s. This indicates that the agency is able to 
recruit and retain DSP staff at an equal rate than we are losing them (separations, terminations, etc). 

Most recent DSP hiring data include the following for the month of November: 
• Coastal Regional Center –  18 DSP’s
• Midlands Regional Center – 2 DSP’s and 3 RN’s
• Pee/Saleeby –  8 DSP’s
• Whitten –  21 DSP’s; 1 RN; 2 LPN’s

DDSN has been able to continue to recruit and retain DSP staff in 2022 at a higher rate as compared to 
2021.  The recruiting and retention efforts indicated below have assisted the agency with decreasing 
turnover. DDSN remains to have a high turnover rate. However, Calendar Year 2022 continues to 
improve with continued increased recruitment and retention, and increased compensation efforts.  

Attachment I



DDSN implemented the Direct Support Professional Career Path Program, effective July 2. Currently, this 
effort has reported to assist with turnover in the regional centers. 

In addition, Human Resources evaluated the Day Programs classification and compensation, which 
resulted in the elimination of multiple internal classifications of Direct Support. This effort assists with 
promoting consistency in posting and filling positions as it relates to Day Programs and Direct Support 
Personnel. Day Support staff were reclassified to Recreation Specialist I-II and Workforce Specialist I – II. 
In addition, compensation was evaluated and new hire rates were established which range from 
$33,280 – $35,360. 

In addition, Human Resources conducted a compensation review for classifications in additional 
program areas located in the regional centers. Ultimately, evaluating the responsibilities of staff serving 
in support roles for the regional centers. This includes Consumer Supports, Housekeeping, Food Service, 
and Maintenance. This effort has been successful for the agency in recruitment and retention. 

Central Office Postings 

Central Office completed 62 hires during January 2022 – October 2022 

• 23 New Hires (Not from another State Agency)
o 6 Temporary staff
o 17 Full Time

• 10 New Hires (Movement between State Agencies)
• 16 rehired Temps
• 13 Internal hire into new positions

Recruitment/Retention Initiatives: 

• Career Projects social media (Twitter, Facebook, LinkedIn)
• Indeed
• Conducting Rapid Hire Events for all Regional Centers
• Attending Job/Career Fairs at all Regional Centers
• Collaboration with Technical Centers and ECPI College of Nursing
• Successful Weekend Warrior Program
• Continue to utilize the job Referral Reward program
• Continue to utilize the candidate Retention Bonus
• Continue to utilize the Nursing Recruitment and Retention Bonus
• Increased Nursing Rates (LPN - $48,000; RN - $62,000; Nurse Manager - $68,000)
• Performance/Merit-Base Increases for the Agency

Onboarding Redesign 

• Human Resources continues to work on the development the On-Boarding Ambassador
program for Central Office.

• The program is scheduled to begin January 2023.



Employee Performance Management (EPMS) 

• 88% submission success for Central Office
• EPMS training was provided in Central Office in April 2022; and in the Regional

Centers.
• HR completed a successful upload in SCEIS for EPMS evaluation on behalf of the

agency.

Exit Interview Process 

• Human Resources is working on an electronic Exit Interview Process. This is an effort to
assist with electronically gathering data trends as it relates to retention, employee
engagement and establishing future training initiatives.

United Way Campaign 

• Human Resources is promoting the United Way Campaign during October – November
2022 on behalf of the agency.

• Efforts include selling/promotion of Bingo Cards and Pet Photo Contest.
• The goal for 2022 is $5000.00. The agency is at approximately 25% close to the goal. This

does not include reoccurring donations.



;02

 Approved 

Spending Plan  

Cash Expenditures 

YTD

SCDHHS Monthly "Wash"  

Expenditures with 

Revenue YTD *

Total Monthly 

Expenditures YTD

 Remaining Spending 

Plan 

Spending Plan Deviation 

with Actual 

938,535,153$     104,563,889$     203,506,822$     308,070,711$     630,464,442$     

100.00% 11.14% 21.68% 32.82% 67.18%

Methodology & Report Owner: DDSN Budget Division

REASONABLE
66.67%

* In October 2022, providers billed & paid by SCDHHS an estimate of $203.5 million in services (waiver services + state plan services).

FY 23 Spending Plan VS Actual Expenditures - 10/31/2022

-0.51%

DDSN spending plan budget 

Percent of total spending plan remaining

% of FY Remaining

Difference % - over (under) budgeted expenditures

Category

Attachment J


	EdMetric SC Acuity Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	Commission Packet for Website.pdf
	1 - Fully Executed Minutes from 11 17 22.pdf
	1 - Agenda November 17 2022 Commission Meeting.pdf
	2 - November 9, 2022 Emergency Meeting and Attachments.pdf
	November 9 2022 Emergency Commission Meeting Minutes.pdf

	2a - October 20, 2022 Special Called Meeting - Listening Session Minutes.pdf
	2b - October 20, 2022 Commission Meeting Minutes.pdf
	3a - Inaugural Technology Summit.pdf
	3b - Finance Committee - November 2022 - Financial Approvals___Thresholds.pdf
	4 - 275-05-DD - General Duties of DDSN Internal Audit - REVISED (110922).pdf
	5 - Administrative Agency Standards - REVISED (111722).pdf
	6 - SCDDSN IM Data November 2022.pdf
	7 - HR Commission Update final - 11-10-2022.pdf
	8 - Authorized Spending Plan Budget versus Actual Expend 10-31-2022 11022022.pdf




